

THE EEG - PART 6 GRADUATION & EXAMINATION BOARD REGULATIONS



31 October 2024



CONTENTS

Gra	duation and E	Examination Board Regulations	3
	Article 1.	Applicability of the Regulations	3
	Article 2.	Dutch Higher Education Act and Code of Conduct	3
	Article 3.	Definitions of Concepts	3
	Article 4.	Objective of the Programmes	4
	Article 5.	Admission to Bachelor's Degree Programmes	4
	Article 6.	Admission to Master's Degree Programmes	5
	Article 7.	Admittance Enquiry	6
	Article 8.	Contents of the Programme and Related Tests and Examinations	6
	Article 9.	Facilities for Taking and Retaking Tests and Examinations	7
	Article 10.	Oral Tests	8
	Article 11.	Determining and Publishing of Test Results	8
	Article 12. with Distinct	Assessment and Announcement of Examination Results: Pass, Not Pass, P	
	Article 13.	Study progress and study supervision	11
	Article 14.	Composition of the Graduation & Examination Board: Modus Operandi	12
	Article 15.	Tasks of the Exam Board	13
	Article 16.	Academic Complaints and Irregularities	14
	Article 17.	Appeal	15
	Article 18.	Provisions for Physically Handicapped Candidates	15
	Article 19.	Exemptions	15
	Article 20.	Right of Perusal	16
	Article 21.	Archives	16
	Article 22.	Circumstances Unforeseen	16
	Article 23.	Final Clauses	17



GRADUATION AND EXAMINATION BOARD REGULATIONS

Article 1. Applicability of the Regulations

These Graduation and Examination Board Regulations apply to the education, assessments and examinations of all programmes at Wittenborg University of Applied Sciences that fall under the jurisdiction of this Graduation and Examination Board. The programmes are arranged for both full-time and part-time students within Wittenborg University of Applied Sciences.

Section 1.01 The programmes / pathways are:

- Bachelor of Business Administration (BBA)
 - o (BBA Pathway) IBA International Business Administration, with all specialisations
 - o (BBA Pathway) HBA Hospitality Business Administration, with all specialisations
 - o (BBA Pathway) EBA Entrepreneurial Business Administration, with all specialisations
 - o (BBA Pathway) MCI Marketing Communication & Information, with all specialisations
- Master of Business Administration (MBA), with all specialisations
- Master of Business Management (MBM/MSc), with all specialisations

Section 1.02 Part of these Regulations is also the General Assessment Policy document hereto attached (in EEG).

Article 2. Dutch Higher Education Act and Code of Conduct

The Graduation and Examination Regulations are in line with the following Dutch Higher Education Act and Code of Conduct.

The Act: The Higher Education and Scientific Research Act (Statute book 1992, 593; WHW, Wet op het Hoger Onderwijs en Wetenschappelijk Onderwijs, hereafter: The Act).

The Code: The National Code of Conduct for International Higher Education in the Netherlands (hereafter: The Code).

Article 3. Definitions of Concepts

In these regulations following concepts are defined:

- Section 3.01 The Board: The Board of Management of Wittenborg, University of Applied Sciences
 - (hereafter: The Board).
- Section 3.02 **The School:** Wittenborg, University of Applied Sciences (hereafter: Wittenborg or

The Institute).

Section 3.03 The Candidate: any student, or student with partial enrolment, registered with The

Institute to follow Wittenborg courses and/or take part in tests or examinations of the

programmes.



Section 3.04	Graduation and Examination Board: the board, established on the basis of article 7.12 paragraph 1 of The Act; composition and tasks of the board have been drawn up in 0 and Article 15 of these Regulations (hereafter: Exam Board).
Section 3.05	Academic year: the period of time as indicated by The Act, that is the period of 1 st September up to and including 31 st August of the next year.
Section 3.06	Preliminary period: the preliminary phase of a programme, as indicated in article 7.8 of The Act, to be concluded by the preliminary examination (known as completion of Year 1 Modules).
Section 3.07	Principal period: the part of a programme following the preliminary period, to be concluded by the final examination (known as completion of Year 2 to Year 4 Modules).
Section 3.08	The examination: the combination of educational units set by the Exam Board according to Article 8 of these Regulations, of which the tests should be taken successfully by the candidate in order to acquire credits.
Section 3.09	Admittance inquiry: an inquiry as meant in article 7.29 of The Act.
Section 3.10	Day: Monday to Saturday.
Section 3.11	European credits (ECs): the study load of each programme is determined in credits according to the European Credit Transfer System (ECTS). The study load of a year is 60 credits, which equals 1,680 hours of study (hereafter: credits).
Section 3.12	Credit transfer: the transfer of credits from a validated programme of study according to the principles of the European Credit Transfer System.
Section 3.13	The Code: Code of Conduct International Student in Dutch Higher Education.

Article 4. Objective of the Programmes

The degree programmes of Wittenborg University of Applied Sciences aim to ensure graduates have acquired such knowledge, skills and understanding of the professional field, to allow a graduate to exercise that knowledge independently in the professional work field, conforming to the national and international attainment targets and qualifications. Detailed aims and objectives are outlined in the programme-specific Education & Examination Guides (EEG).

Article 5. Admission to Bachelor's Degree Programmes

Section 5.01 Enrolment within the bachelor's degree programmes requires possession of a diploma, that is equivalent to 'pre-university education' (VWO, Voorbereidend Wetenschappelijk Onderwijs), 'general secondary education' (HAVO, Hoger Algemeen



Voortgezet Onderwijs) or 'secondary vocational education level 4' (MBO, Middelbaar Beroeps Onderwijs).

- The owner of a certificate of a successfully concluded preliminary or final examination Section 5.02 at an institution of higher education, whether or not issued in the Netherlands, is exempted by the Exam Board from the requirements as mentioned in Section 5.01 of these Regulations.
- The owner of a certificate, whether or not issued in the Netherlands, which is regarded Section 5.03 by the Dutch Ministry of Education at least equal to one of the diplomas mentioned in Section 5.01 of these Regulations, is exempted by the Exam Board from the requirements mentioned in Section 5.01 of these Regulations.
- Section 5.04 The owner of a diploma, whether or not issued in the Netherlands, not included in the Ministry's arrangement as mentioned in paragraph 1c of article 7.2.2. of the Act, can be exempted by the Exam Board from the requirements if the diploma in the Exam Board's opinion, is at least equal to one of the diplomas mentioned under Section 5.01 of these Regulations.
- Section 5.05 The Exam Board will include in its opinion any advice given by NUFFIC (Netherlands University Foundation for International Cooperation), relating to the possible equivalence of diplomas.
 - (a) Prior education requirements for university education, as meant in the Code, including minimum language proficiency levels, are deemed to have been satisfied after assessment of the relevant deficiency courses offered by the Institute.
 - (b) Deficiency courses as meant in (a) above include any remedial English course deemed necessary by the Institute.
 - (c) The student cannot be admitted to the second year/phase as long as any deficiency course mentioned under (a) has not been successfully completed.

Article 6. Admission to Master's Degree Programmes

The admission requirements (criteria) for the master's degree programmes are as follows:

- (a) Bachelor's degree or equivalent recognised qualification, and in their degree students must have completed an academic piece of work (final project or dissertation) that shows a degree of academic writing and research experience;
- (b) MBM (MSc) only: their previous degree must be completed in a business administration or management field/domain; furthermore applicants are requested to provide one academic reference- from previous education, as well as an additional academic reference or a reference from a former employer, or person in a professional position.





- (c) MBA only: must demonstrate a minimum of 3 years' professional experience; furthermore applicants are requested to provide a reference from a company or organisation where they have worked.
- (d) English language level equivalent to IELTS 6.5 overall, 6.0 in writing.

Article 7. Admittance Enquiry

The requirements made at an admittance Enquiry, as meant in article 7.29 of The Act, have been included, if applicable in the 'Arrangement Admittance for Students 21 years and Older' (Education and Examination Guides).

Article 8. Contents of the Programme and Related Tests and Examinations.

Section 8.01 In more detailed arrangement, the Exam Board determines on time each year:

- (a) From which educational units (modules) the programmes exist and which (partial) tests are included in the preliminary and final examination.
- (b) The study load of the programme and the educational units.
- (c) Whether the (partial) tests will have to be taken orally, in written form or in any other way, whereas the Exam Board on request of the candidate, may allow for a test to be taken in a way other than indicated.
- (d) In what way judgment of a test is acquired from the judgment of related partial tests and when a test has been successfully concluded.
- (e) The organisation of practical exercises.
- (f) The order in which, the periods of time within, and the number of times in the academic year that students are offered an opportunity to take part in tests and examinations.
- (g) The minimum requirement of 220 credits for bachelor's programmes, 65 credits for MBA and 65 credits for MBM (MSc) for students to be allowed to do the graduation presentation.
- (h) That a successful conclusion of tests is a condition for admittance to certain other tests.
- (i) The obligation to take part in practical exercises in view of admittance to take part in the related test, subject to the Exam Board's authority to grant exemption from that obligation, whether or not enforcing alternative demands.
- (j) Duration of (partial) tests.





- (k) If any and which aids may be used during (partial) tests.
- (I) The procedure for registration for (partial) tests.
- (m) The number and order of tests as well as the moments at which they can be taken.
- Section 8.02 Some programmes offer each student the possibility to take part in 'specialisation modules freely to be chosen' as part of the examination regulations of a programme with a maximum study load of 60 credits for bachelor's programmes and with a maximum study load of 10 credits for master's programmes.
- Section 8.03 The choice of specialisation is to be mentioned on the diploma (degree certificate) and requires students to continue their chosen specialisation in the Work Experience Module and the Graduation Dissertation Modules for the bachelor's programmes and the Final Project for master's students.
- Section 8.04 Major changes, such as new modules, or any curriculum change after review that affects more than 10% of the programme, will have to be approved by the Exam Board and implemented per following academic year.

Article 9. Facilities for Taking and Retaking Tests and Examinations

- Section 9.01 At least twice a year, candidates are offered the possibility to take (partial) examinations. The Institute can set further regulations regarding the signing up for participation in (partial) examinations. The Institute makes sure that these kinds of rules are known in time.
- Section 9.02 Candidates are offered the possibility to retake examinations at least once a year:
 - (a) Retake Weeks-Winter examinations will repeat the examinations of the full module examinations of Blocks May, September and October.
 - (b) Retake Weeks-Summer examinations will repeat the examinations of the full module examinations of Blocks December, February and April.
- Section 9.03 If a candidate takes a test more than once, the result of the last taken test is in force, unless a previous result should be higher. Per module, the maximum retakes allowed is 4. In special cases (at the student's written request) the Exam Board may decide otherwise.
- Section 9.04 The period of validity of a successfully concluded (partial) test is four years, except for the Exam Board or examiner's authority to reduce this period of validity.
- Section 9.05 Possession of a certificate or other proof of passing of the preliminary examination (if any exists) of the programme is demanded in order to register for courses and for taking (partial) tests of the second phase (Education and Examination Guides).
- Section 9.06 The Exam Board may grant admittance, on request of the registered student, to take one or more (partial) tests of the final examination, even before they have successfully concluded the preliminary examination of the programme. The Exam Board lays down in writing to which (partial) tests the candidate has been admitted.



Section 9.07	The student, exempted from completion of examinations that form part of the
	preliminary period under article 7.31a of The Act, is given entrance to one or more
	components of the final examinations.
Section 9.08	Retake (partial) examinations will be limited to a maximum of 4 modules in Retake
	Weeks if the student was absent in any of the regular block examinations.
Section 9.09	If a student misses an examination without any valid reason, their registration for the
	following retake examinations will be limited to a maximum of 3 modules.
Section 9.10	Retakes for exam types 2, 3, and 5 do not include presentations or oral assessment; the
	original assessment of the presentations is carried over to the relevant retake exam.
Section 9.11	Seminar papers cannot be retaken.
_	

Article 10. Oral Tests

- Section 10.01 There will be no more than two students participating at an oral test, unless the Exam Board has ruled otherwise.
- Section 10.02 Oral tests are public, unless the Exam Board or the examiner concerned has ruled otherwise in a specific case, or if the candidate is opposed to it.
- Section 10.03 Oral presentations that are part of exam type 2, 3, and 5 cannot be retaken (see section 8.14). This can be overruled by the Exam Board e.g. in cases where a student has been given provisions under article 17.

Article 11. Determining and Publishing of Test Results

- Section 11.01 The examiner determines the result of a (partial) oral test on the day of that examination and issues the candidate with a written declaration to that effect.
- Section 11.02 The examiner determines the result of a written (partial) test within maximal ten working days (for written examinations) or twenty working days (for essays, reports and project work) after the day it was taken and supplies the administration of The Institute with a signed declaration in view of handing out the written declaration on the result to the candidate. A written statement regarding the results of the (partial) test is given out to the candidate within 30 days after the day it was taken.
- Section 11.03 With reference to tests to be taken other than orally or written, the Exam Board determines in advance in what way and within which period of time the candidate will receive a written confirmation about the result.
- Section 11.04 On a written statement about the result of a (partial) test, the student's attention is also drawn to the right of perusal, mentioned in Article 20 of these Regulations, as well as to the possibility of appeal with The Board of Appeal for Exams.



Article 12. Assessment and Announcement of Examination Results: Pass, Not Pass, Pass with Distinction

- Section 12.01 The Exam Board determines in a meeting, in a given period, which candidates have successfully passed examinations and the Exam Board affirms the students' credits.
- Section 12.02 An examination has been successfully concluded when the candidate has met the demands mentioned in Section 12.03 for bachelor's students and in Section 12.04 for master's students.

A candidate has passed the preliminary examination, if any (Year 1 Modules of Phase 1) when the tests of all educational units were taken successfully, and all modules have been passed. A student is required to pass all modules with a final mark of 6.o. However, 1 module may be left at a final mark of 5.5, in order for all 60 credits for Year 1 modules to be awarded.

- Section 12.03 A bachelor's candidate has passed the final examination (Graduation) when he has met the following demands:
 - (a) For all tests of the educational units of the Phase 1 Modules at least 6 as a final mark, except for 1 module for which a 5.5 as a final mark may be obtained, or an indication of pass.
 - (b) For all tests of the educational units of the Phase 2 Modules at least 6 as a final mark, except for 1 module for which a 5.5 as a final mark may be obtained, or an indication of pass.
 - (c) If applicable, the test of the module 'practical period' may be completed with the indication of pass.
 - (d) For all tests of the Phase 3 Modules at least 6 as a final mark, except for 1 module for which a 5.5 as a final mark may be obtained, or an indication of pass.
 - (e) Under (a), (b) and (d), marks of 5.5 and upwards will be rounded up to a final mark of 6.
- Section 12.04 A master's candidate has passed the final examination (Graduation) when he has met the following demands:
 - (a) For all tests of the educational units of Year 1 Modules at least 6 as a final mark, except for 1 module for which a 5.5 as a final mark may be obtained, or an indication of pass.
 - (b) For all tests of the educational units of Year 2 Modules (Final Project) at least 6 as a final mark.





- (c) Under (a), marks of 5.5 and upwards will be rounded up to a final mark of 6. A mark of 5.1 and higher can, in exceptional cases determined by the Exam Board, be rounded up to a final mark of 5.5. The final mark of a test can be rounded up.
- Section 12.05 The candidate will be informed of the result within 5 working days after the meeting mentioned under Section 12.01 of these Regulations.
- Section 12.06 A testimony will be given to candidates who passed the preliminary or final examination, if any, as mentioned in article 7.11 paragraph 1 of The Act. The name of the programme is mentioned on the testimony, and the parts the examination consisted of, and, when appropriate, which qualification is connected with it, observing article 7.6 first paragraph, of The Act.
- Section 12.07 On the list of marks belonging to the Graduation Year/Final Year:
 - (a) "With honours" is written, when the candidate has:
 - (i) For the educational units of each year (with exemption of the educational unit Graduation Assignment Module for bachelor's students and for the Final Project for master's students) at least an average of 8.0 and higher.
 - (ii) For the average of the Graduation Assignment for bachelor's students and for the Final Project for master's students at least 8.0 as a final mark.
 - (b) "With distinction" is written, when the candidate has:
 - (i) For the educational units of each year (with exemption of the educational unit Graduation Assignment Module for bachelor's students and the Final Project for master's students) an average lower than 8.0 and higher than 7.0.
 - (ii) For the average of the Graduation Assignment for bachelor's students and for the Final Project for master's students at least 7.0 as a final mark.
 - (c) "With credit" is written, when the candidate has:
 - (i) For the educational units of each year (with exemption of the educational unit Graduation Assignment Module for bachelor's students and the Final Project for master's students) an average lower than 7.0 and higher than 6.0.
 - (ii) For the average of the Graduation Assignment for bachelor's students and for the Final Project for master's students at least 6.0 as a final mark.
 - (d) "With pass" is written, when the candidate has:
 - (i) For the educational units of each year (with exemption of the educational unit Graduation Assignment Module for bachelor's students and the Final Project for master's students) an average lower than 6.0 and higher than 5.5.



(ii) For the average of the Graduation Assignment for bachelor's students at least 5.5 as a final mark and for the Final Project for master's students at least 6.0 as a final mark.

Section 12.08 The student who has passed one or more tests and to whom no diploma or certificate can be handed out, will receive a statement on their request, to be issued by the Exam Board, in which at any rate the tests are mentioned that he has concluded successfully.

Article 13. Study progress and study supervision

- Section 13.01 The Board arranges for such registration of study results, that all candidates will receive at least once per term a survey of their personal results, related to the education and examination programme of the Institute.
- Section 13.02 The Board arranges for study supervision for candidates registered with the programme.
- Section 13.03 Students are issued with a written advice every half year. This study advice is an addendum to the study agreement signed upon acceptance into the degree programme. The study advice will include an overview of the study credits achieved thus far, along with a prognosis of the candidate's future studies at Wittenborg. A study advice can be given in two forms: a positive or a negative study advice.

If applicable, a negative study advice due to insufficient study progress may lead to Wittenborg withdrawing its sponsorship of the study residence permit with the Dutch Immigration Office (IND). This may cause a revoke of the study residence permit by the IND.

- Section 13.04 The number of credits required for progression from one study phase/year to another are described in the Education and Examination Guides.
- Section 13.05 If for the candidate a rejection is incorporated in the advice, the student has the right of appeal to the Exam Board (See section 15.01).
- Section 13.06 If a student misses an exam or deadline due to specific extenuating circumstances (illness, hospitalisation, bereavement, etc.), the student must submit a written request for extension to the Exam Board before the last Thursday of the teaching block.

 Requests must be accompanied by evidence (doctor's note, etc.).



Article 14.	Composition of the Graduation & Examination Board: Modus Operandi
Section 14.01	The Board appoints the Chairperson and the members of the Graduation & Examination Board (Exam Board). Members normally serve for at least one academic year, but this can be extended to multiple years. The Chairperson lays down in writing which members of the Exam Board will act as deputy Chairperson, Secretary and deputy Secretary. The Exam Board reports to The Board.
Section 14.02	Members of the Exam Board are employees charged with education in the programme and have extensive experience in teaching in higher education equivalent to a Postgraduate Certificate in Learning & Teaching. Membership of members who do not possesses these qualifications shall be deemed ex-officio and without the right to vote.
Section 14.03	Membership of the Exam Board ends automatically if the employee concerned is no longer at the Institute (except for externals, see 13.04 below).
Section 14.04	Membership will include at least one external, who is independent from the Institute. External members can also be appointed as Chairperson or deputy Chairperson.
Section 14.05	The Board guarantees that there is a diversity of expertise among the appointed members of the Exam Board (e.g. discipline/subject-related, assessment methodologies and procedures, laws and regulations, international expertise).
Section 14.06	The Exam Board meets every block. Meetings are off-line and face-to-face, but meetings of any sub-committee installed by the Exam Board may also take place through online or video communication.
Section 14.07	A minimum of four members is required (including Chair or deputy Chair) to make decisions. All meetings are documented in minutes by the Exam Board Secretary.
Section 14.08	Exam Board meetings are closed and its minutes confidential. All information about students and instructors will be treated with utmost confidentiality.
Section 14.09	The Exam Board decides by a simple majority of votes. In case of a tie, the Chair or deputy Chair has the casting vote.
Section 14.10	The Exam Board may decide to confer some of its authority, if necessary, with certain constraints and conditions, on the Chairperson, provided that this is not in conflict with the law or these regulations (Chair's action).
Section 14.11	The Exam Board may be assisted by others, such as advisors or other tutors, only if agreed by a majority of the board. The role of non-appointed staff is temporary, purely consultative, and they have no vote.





Section 14.12 The Chairperson of the Exam Board sends regular reports, with a minimum of once per academic year, on the workings of the Exam Board to The Board.

Article 15. Tasks of the Exam Board

- Section 15.01 The Exam Board is in charge of arranging (partial) tests and examinations and specifying results.
- Section 15.02 The Exam Board takes care of the organisation of (partial) tests and examinations and of good procedures during (partial) tests and examinations.
- Section 15.03 The dates and times for taking (partial) tests are set on time by or on behalf of the Exam Board.
- Section 15.04 The Exam Board rules within 10 working days whether a programme of educational units (modules), composed by an individual student at a previous institution will be approved (transfer credits). Such a request shall be submitted in written form, not more than one month after enrolment in a particular academic year and should be related to the educational units to be studied in that year. The Exam Board will adhere to the national attainment targets mentioned in Article 4 of these Regulations in forming the decision. See also Section 14.09.
- Section 15.05 The Exam Board appoints examiners who are in charge of taking (partial) tests. Only staff members in charge of education in the educational unit concerned can be appointed examiner, as well as experts from outside The Institute. The examiners give the Exam Board the information they ask for. Examiners shall always hold an academic qualification of at least master's level (used to be Section 23.07). Examiners must also have experience or qualifications in pedagogy or didactics equivalent to that of Dutch universities' BKO standard.
- Section 15.06 The Exam Board can give guidelines and directives to the examiners concerning the judgement of the candidate related to determining the result of the test.
- Section 15.07 The Exam Board accepts all examiners of institutions contributing to the programmes and joint degree programmes through Wittenborg's institutional articulation agreements as approved examiners. Similarly, the Exam Board accepts all credits obtained by students through such articulation agreements as official transfer credits in the programmes.
- Section 15.08 The Exam Board mandates the Registrar with the decisions and administration of transfer credits according to standards and principles of ECTS, according to the quidelines (ECTS User's Guide, May 2015, updated 2018¹).

¹ ECTS Users Guide https://ec.europa.eu/education/resources-and-tools/document-library/ects-users-guide_en Education & Examination Guide



- Section 15.09 Upon successful completion of all degree requirements (bachelor's 240 EC, MSc 60 EC, MBA & MBM 90 EC) including the final thesis or dissertation phase, and after verification thereof by the administration, the Exam Board shall award the relevant (Dutch) Wittenborg diplomas or certificates and corresponding European diploma supplements to graduating students.
- Section 15.10 By awarding the diplomas or certificates mentioned in Section 14.08 above, the Exam Board confers the corresponding degrees to graduates as evidence of final graduation, conform the Act.

Article 16. Academic Complaints and Irregularities

- Section 16.01 Students have a right to question any academic decision by Wittenborg lecturers and examiners in writing to the Exam Board as ultimate resort. Such a request shall be submitted in written form, not more than one month after the decision was made. The complaint or request will be discussed in the first scheduled Exam Board meeting, and a decision communicated to the student within 10 working days after that meeting.
- Section 16.02 If a complaint involves a member of the Exam Board, the member in question will not take part in the deliberations or decisions concerning this complaint.
- Section 16.03 Exam Board decisions are considered to be final. For Appeals, see Article 17.
- Section 16.04 In case of fraud, plagiarism, self-plagiarism or any other irregularity or academic dishonesty by a candidate, the Exam Board may decide on any disciplinary action they deem appropriate and justified, including (but not limited to) an official warning, a reduction of the grade, or the decision that during a period of one year at most, this candidate is denied the right to take one or more specific (partial) test or examinations at The Institute.
- Section 16.05 If a case of fraud or any other irregularity should be discovered not until after the examination, the Exam Board can deny the candidate the certificate or diploma, or may rule that the candidate concerned can only receive the certificate or diploma after taking a new test in the educational units, in a manner to be indicated by the Exam Board.
- Section 16.06 Before deciding in accordance with Section 16.04 or Section 16.05 of these Regulations respectively, the Chairperson of the Exam Board or their designee can decide to hear the candidate. The Chairperson or the Secretary of the Exam Board informs the candidate straightaway of the decision, if possible, personally and in any case in writing.
- Section 16.07 When the Chairperson of the Exam Board or the Exam Board takes a decision as mentioned in Section 16.01 or Section 16.05 of these Regulations respectively, the Chairperson of the Exam Board sends a copy of this decision to The Board.





Section 16.08 At the discretion of the Exam Board, a policy of leniency can be introduced under particular circumstances.

Section 16.09 In cases of serious violations of academic honesty, such as repeated cases of wilful deceit, the Exam Board may advice the Board to dismiss or temporarily dismiss the student. The Exam Board itself does not decide on expulsion or dismissal, whether temporary or permanent.

Section 16.10 All complaints/appeals of a non-academic nature are not within the charge of the Exam Board and will be referred to the Board.

Article 17. Appeal

Section 17.01 A student who feels that an incorrect decision has been made by the Exam Board related to their examination, test or partial test, or related to a judgement or treatment while taking an examination or a partial examination, can appeal to the Board of Appeal for Graduation and Examinations of the Institute.

Section 17.02 Also, if a candidate contests a decision with regard to evaluation or with regard to dealings of supervisors during examinations, that candidate can appeal to the above-mentioned Appeal Board. See the Complaints Procedure in the Education and Examination Guides.

Article 18. Provisions for Physically Handicapped Candidates

The Chairperson of the Exam Board may allow a physically handicapped candidate to take a (partial) test fully or partially in a manner adapted to the possibilities that the physical condition of the candidate offers. In such a case, the Exam Board decides on the way in which the (partial) test will be taken, guided by the Dutch "Referentiemodel" of the Expertisecentrum Handicap en studie (2013).

Article 19. Exemptions

Section 19.01 The Exam Board, at the written request of a candidate and at the suggestion of the examiner concerned, may grant exemption from a (partial) test, mentioned in Article 8 of these Regulations, if one of the conditions occurs (to be mentioned below), related to the educational unit (module) concerned:

- (a) The (partial) test in contents and study load equals the (partial) test taken in an educational unit of another institution of higher education in the Netherlands.
- (b) The (partial) test in contents and study load equals the (partial) test taken in an educational unit other than higher education.

Section 19.02 If according to Section 19.01(a) of these Regulations an exemption is granted, the mark is fixed at 6.0.





Section 19.03 If a

If according to Section 19.01(b) of these Regulations an exemption is granted, the mark is fixed at 6.0.

Section 19.04

In cases where exemption for a (partial) examination is given, as implied in Section 19.01 of these Regulations, under which the course administrators are not required to attribute a mark, according to the Education and Examination Guide and Module Guides, the term 'Pass' or 'Fail' will be used.

- (a) The period of validity of an exemption for a (partial) test is set by the Exam Board, and can be extended by the Exam Board.
- (b) If the Exam Board grants exemption as requested for a (partial) test, a "Proof of Exemption (Partial) Test" is sent to the requestor. This proof mentions the date on which the exemption was granted, the name of the (partial) test, and the validity.

Section 19.05 Decisions as described in this article, are subject to 17 of these Regulations.

Article 20. Right of Perusal

Section 20.01

Within a maximum of thirty days from the publication of the results of a written (partial) test, candidates, on their request, receive the right to inspect their assessed paper. They are also given, on their request, a copy of that paper at cost price, while the Exam Board may decide not to furnish any copies of test questions and assignments.

Section 20.02

During the period mentioned in Section 20.01 of these Regulations candidates can inspect questions and assignments of the (partial) test concerned and learn about the criteria which were the basis of the assessment.

Section 20.03

The Exam Board may rule, that the inspection or studying the criteria will be done in a certain place and on at least two fixed moments. If by personal circumstances (to be judged by the Exam Board) a candidate has not had an opportunity to peruse, the Exam Board and the candidate determine, for one more time, a new moment and place for perusal.

Article 21. Archives

Section 21.01 The Chairperson of the Exam Board sees to it that used (partial) test questions are kept for at least one year. The written (partial) test work and the reports on written and practical exercises will be kept for at least until the end of the period for appeal for that (part) examination.

Section 21.02 The Chairperson of the Exam Board sees to it that of each candidate the qualifications taken at the examination and the result will be kept in The Institute's archives at all times.

Article 22. Circumstances Unforeseen



Section 22.01 In cases where these Regulations do not include any arrangement relating these circumstances, the Exam Board decides.

Section 22.02 In cases where these Regulations do not include any arrangement relating these circumstances and which require a prompt decision, the Board decides. The Board communicates this decision as soon as possible to the Exam Board and other parties involved.

Article 23.	Final Clauses
Section 23.01	These Regulations are in force as of 31st August 2016.
Section 23.02	These Regulations are subject to annual revision, in which, for the sake of control and possible adjustment of the study load, the amount of time resulting from this for the students will be measured. If Article 22 of these Regulations has been applied, this circumstance should also be measured.
Section 23.03	These Regulations can exclusively be altered after written permission by the Board, respectively after determining the altered integral regulations.
Section 23.04	These Regulations may be referred to as "Graduation and Examination Regulations of the Programmes of WITTENBORG".
Section 23.05	The Board sees to the announcement of these Regulations to the candidates.
Section 23.06	This version of the Graduation and Examination Regulations replaces all previous versions. These previous versions have all become void, unless the Chairperson of the Exam Board has agreed in writing to any other agreement.
Section 23.07	Students have a right to complete their academic programmes under the degree requirements that existed at the time of their first registration, in as far as curriculum offerings allow. If programme changes are made that affect student programmes of study, every effort will be made to transition students into a new programme of study that meets the new graduation requirements. Students proceeding under revised academic policies must comply with all requirements under the changed programme.
Section 23.08	Any articles or subsections, plus additional information as decided by the Exam Board, published in a separate document called "Wittenborg General Assessment Policy" shall be deemed to be an extension of these regulations and part of all EEGs.